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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND QRIGINAL (if KKOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Carroll County Courthouse at Berryville was originally a two storey structure
measuring approximately 46 feet by 56 feet. Built of pressed brick made at the
construction site, the 1880 structure's facade consisted of three inset bays.
Semi-elliptical brick arches marked the window and door surrounds, and a
decorative pattern worked in brick spannad the facade at the roof line. Simple
brickwork ornamentation softened the harsh lines of the original rectangular
flat-roofed building. ' : ' '

The enlargement of the courthouse in 1904-~1905 transformed it into the present
structure, measuring. approximately 90 fest by 100 feet. fsing-red brick to
wmatch the original, a third floor with mansard roof was added tc the original
two storey structure. "The facade retained its three inset bays, but lost the
brickwork ornamentation at the original roof line. The most striking change
to the building came with the addition of two square towers at each corner of
the facade. These four storey towers added greatly to the imposing appearance
of the courthouse. -

The arched window openings were renlaced with rectangular openings trimmad with
limestope lintels and lugsills, The brick arched center bay entry was raplazed
Wwith a cut limestone arch matching the window trim. This entry style was repeated
at the central bay openings on both the second and third floors. Paired brackets
were used to decorate the boxed cornice and frieze of both the main structure

and the two attached towers. The last major work on the building occurred in

1935 when the exterior:brick was painted and a basement was added.

The first two flioors in the interior are arranged: with a central hall opening
on to several offices along each side. A wide stairway in the southeast corner
winds from the first to the second and third floors. Plaster above tongue-
in-groove wainscoting is used throughout the interior of the building.

Most of the third storey is taken up by the courtroom which has a seating
capacity of three hundred persons. A decorative wooden railing separates the
Judge's bench, witness stand and jury box from the spectator's area.. Of
special interest in this room are the iron grilled clerk's enclosure and the
stamped metal ceiling.

Both inside and out the Carroll County Courthouse at Berryviile is reminiscent of
the turn-of-the-century era in which it was built. As Berryville's most

important historic landmark, the courthouse is alse the city's most architecturally
significant structure,
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When Carroll County, Arkansas, was established in 1833, the town of Carrollton
was chosen by a board of commissioners to be the county seat.: During the next
forty years three new counties were created from lands originally in Carroll
County. These boundary changes left Carrollton on the eastern edge of a
grzatly reduced county. Inevitably, a demand arose that the county seat be
moved to a more centrally located site, ' .

After much controversy and two elections, the Carroll County seat was moved from
Carrellton to Berryville in 1875. On May 10 of that year County Judge A. Fanning
apprintad a commission ko sslect a site in Berrvyvilla for the nov gauaty buildings.,
Copmissienars 2. J. diack, J. 3. 0'Neoal and Iszac Plumles ourbcases Trom blackbuen
H. Berry a lot on which to build the courthouse. Berry then donated a tract of
land just east of the courthouse site to be used as a public square.

R. H. Jones preparsd the plans and specifications for Berryville's first
courthouse. On December 6, 1880, the contract for. construction of the new
courthouse was awarded to J. P. Fancher, who estimated building costs at $8,997.50.
The original: two-storey brick and stone structure was completed and first occupied
in the auvtumn of 1881. A central hall was located on the first floor of this

46 feet by 56 feet.building. The.second floor contained a large court rcom and

two small jury rooms.

Soon after the courthouse at Berryville was completed in 1881, citizens in the
western part of the county began to move to have a second county seat established
at Eureka Springs. In the.early 1880's this health spa community grew very
rapidly. The mountainous terrain and the frequent floods of the King's River
made travel between Eureka Springs and the county seat at Berryville quite
hazardous. |In 1883 the Arkansas General Assembly reacted favorably to the demand
for 2 second Carroll! County.Courthouse at Eureka Springs. The Berryville
Courthouse remained, and Carroll County became one of several Arkansas counties
with two seats of government. '

In 1904-1505 the Berryville Courthouse was enlarged when a third storey was

added on top of the original flat-rcofed structure. Other additions included a
mansard roof covering the third floor, two four-storey towars at the northeast
and southeast corners of the buildinc, and an extension of the rear of the
ouilding. Brick used in these additions matched the original brick. The original
interior wall coverning of plaster above tongus-in-grocve pine wainscoting was
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also copied in the 1904-1905 improvements. These early twentieth century
alterations to the building cost about $7,000.00, and transformed the courthouse
into Berryville's most architecturally interesting structure. Though it has

no definable style, the courthouse is remtnfscenL oF the late Victorian period
in which it was constructed, '

After 90 years of service.the Carroll County Courthouse is no longer large
enough to accomodate county government offices. As soon as county offices are
maved L0 another building, the lower floor of the courthouse will be used as
office space for the County Welfare Department. The second floor will be used
as a meeting place for the Carrcll County Historical Society, while the Carroll
County Museum will occupy the tnird floor.

Over the yedrs Berryville's Carroll County Courthouse served many purposes in
addition to housing the eastern district county offices. It has heen used by
cavrch arouns, Foe dramatic producticas, lectures, end comuuniiy meclings, and
a5 a storm steiter and improvised nospizal. [Ios past and. present wsefulness,
and its Jate Victorian architectura! features combine to make the Carroll
County Courthouse a most significant historic structure in Berryville.
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County Historical Quarterly, Vol. X! {December, 1966).
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Quarterly, VYol. V!l {(December, 1962).
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Quarterly, Vol. X!V (December, 1969).
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